TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
MINUTES - NOVEMBER 18, 2015

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Township of Lower
Makefield was held in the Municipal Building on November 18, 2015. Ms. Tyler
called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

Those present: Kristin Tyler, Chair
Jeff Benedetto, Secretary
Dobby Dobson, Treasurer
Ron Smith, Supervisor

Others: Terry Fedorchak, Township Manager
John Koopman, Township Solicitor (left meeting in
progress)
Nathan Fox, Township Solicitor (joined meeting in
progress)
Mark Eisold, Township Engineer
Kenneth Coluzzi, Chief of Police

Absent: Dan McLaughlin, Board of Supervisors Vice Chair

PUBLIC COMMENT

Ms. Maggie Robinson, 549 Kings Road, was present and stated she is President of
Artists of Yardley. She stated this weekend they are having their Fifth Annual Fine
Crafts Show and a bake sale. On Friday, December 4 they will have their holiday
party and opening reception where there is an opportunity to acquire original
works of art. Ms. Robinson stated it is a proven fact that access to the arts is a
valuable asset to the community. Ms. Robinson stated on October 3, 2014 she gave
a presentation at the Township demonstrating the fact that having AOY at the
Janney House on Patterson Farm does not cost the Township anything, and in fact
saves the Township money since they maintain the house and pay for heat and
utilities. Ms. Robinson stated they have done renovations and made the Janney
House a special place.

Ms. Robinson stated they are a non-profit organization, and their members and
volunteers are dedicated to the Arts and appreciate what they have. She stated
their major source of income is their education program, and they provide a variety
of classes and workshops for adults and youths throughout the year. She stated
their summer camp program has been a great success for the past five years with an
average of 250 to 300 children attending between June and August. Ms. Robinson
stated they have received many requests to expand their education programs, and



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 2 of 29

the desire for a ceramics studio comes u ) vears ago AOY was
granted the use of the pack house in a letter from the Township. She stated much
volunteer time went into cleaning it out, and there were two huge tables that

Mr. Stewart was able te haul out and reuse. She stated AQY has been gifted two
ceramic kilns that are currently stored in the pack house waiting to go into service.
She stated they are very grateful to have had the pack house offered to them, and
they have been working toward making its use a reality ever since. She stated the
pack house is the first choice for renovation because it needs the least amount of
work to get it into usable condition. She stated AOY has been collecting estimates for
saving this building, and they have a target number of dollars that will be needed
before they can start. Shp stated they are seeking Grants, more spensors, and
working on more fz:;z aising, events, programs, and on-iine donations; and AOY has
already received some funding which will be %pi.«'ie«{ to the renovations. She stated
their organization mf over two hundred {ifty members has already proven what
snthusiasm and or e-thinking people can do. She stated raising funds is crucial

= LD 253 L.l LG Igiie
She stated they need a JJ[NMIU”‘ nt from the To"v ﬂni} for the future of A ALO& on the
5 - b -

3 h em

iil emi la

a-term 13'1}»; A7

o

s h the Township on a lon

La contL }Dl“o”mmg rt-related services to all ages in the
Mr. Benedetto stated he understands that the pack house is not part of the current
Lease, and Ms. Robinson agreed. Mr. Benedetto stated the letter Ms. Robinson
referenced was a letter to her from Mr. Fedorchak in ’?0 12. Mr. Benedetto stated
he feels the Township, Mr. Stewart, and the Artists of Yardley all need to sit down to
determine the best use of the pack house since at 1he last few meetings there were
discussions about Mr. Stewart using the pack house. Mr. Benedetto stated he is in
favor a long-term Lease with the Artists of Yardley because he feels they provide
value, and they should set the parameters including whether or not the pack house
is included.

Ms. Tyler asked Mr. Fedorchak to set up such a meeting so that they can move
forward. Ms. Robinson stated they do need more space since there is a lot more that
they want to do.

Mr. Benedetto stated he understands currently the Lease is month by month.

Ms. Robinson stated they had an automatic three-year extension so the Lease is
good until next year. Mr. Benedetto asked the length of Lease they are looking for,
and Ms. Robinson stated it would be as [ong as they can get. She stated they want to
raise funds, and people would not want te donate to refurbish a building that wouid
not be theirs for a long-term use.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 3 of 29

Ms. Liz Baxter, Arborlea Avenue, asked the Board to take a stand against the
proposed Elcon hazardous waste processing facility. Ms. Tyler stated the Township
engineers were already engaged in Phase | and raised some objections. Ms. Baxter
stated Phase I was just approved; and Ms. Tyler stated while they know this, the
Township engineering firm will continue to stay engaged.

Mr. Smith asked Ms. Baxter to describe the situation. Ms. Baxter stated Elcon
Recycling is a hazardous waste processing company which is currently in Israel.

She stated they had multiple violations and had to move the facility out of a densely
populated to an area in “the middle of nowhere.” She stated they are proposing to
build a facility next to the incinerator in Falls Township. She stated the air quality in
Bucks County is already poor, and they would be very close to the River as well.

She stated they are proposing to bring in seventeen to twenty-five loads of
hazardous waste every day. She stated initially they asked for a Permit to discharge
into the River, but that has been pulled; and they are now stating that it will be a
closed-loop facility, but she personally does not feel that it will not release anything
into the air, the groundwater, or the River. She stated itis unproven technology that
they will be using. She reviewed the chemicals that they are currently processing.
She stated many of these present cancer and other risks. Ms. Baxter stated there are
approximately 10,000 children living within four miles of this proposed facility.

Mr. Eisold stated they have reviewed a lot of the information and put together a
letter on behalf of the Township to DEP which was soliciting comments from
various bodies. He stated they received a response from DEP that they are
collecting comments, and the Permit was being pushed back because of the number
of comments they received.

Ms. Tyler stated she feels Lower Makefield needs to join in oppesition with others to
this facility, and she does not feel engineering is the only avenue. She asked

Mr. Koopman if in addition to the engineers being involved, could the Township
provide a legal opinion. Mr. Koopman stated he is not familiar with the exact
procedure as to where this is in the DEP process although he heard Phase |
addressed some issues having to do with the floodplain and wetlands. He stated it
will be a long process with the DEP. Mr. Koopman stated it would be appropriate at
some point for the Township to consider if they want to take legal action now orin
the future. Ms. Tyler asked if Lower Makefield has standing; and Mr. Koopman
stated he would not know that without looking into it. Ms. Tyler stated she feels the
Board should have the Township solicitor look into this and consider a legal strategy
for opposing this facility. There were no Board members in opposition to this.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors ~ page 4 of 29

Mr. Benedetto stated based on the letter from State Representative Santarsiero it
indicates that the proposed faciiity is closer to Morrisville and Lower Makefield
residents than it is to Falls Township residents which he feels would work in the
Township's favor with respect to standing.

Ms. Tyler asked that this matter be put back on the Agenda for the seccnd meeting
in December to give the engineer and the solicitor time to look into this further.
She stated the Township shares the residents’ concerns.

Mr. Smith stated he is disturbed that all they did is send a letter, and he appreciates
that they will be taking a more proactive stance. Mr. Smith stated hazardous waste
comes through Lower Makcﬁcid every day. Ms. Tyler stated the lei:tﬁ-r that the
engineer sent indicated that Lower Makefield requires that they tell them exactly

what is coming through the Township, how much of it, and when. Mr. Smith stated
i ut what goes through the Township right
T,

while he read the le
now that they do no Eu_xOJd stateq Lhele are a number of

ter, he is curious aboi
.

El
feven know LeCz E M

fiings tnat

i 4 43 14
be a hub that this would

to tell, and this

Ms. Tyler asked Mr‘ F ﬂd:}l‘“vhak to reach out to Representative Santarsiero as well

to see whatthe 5 is doing moving forwai "d
Ms. Baxter stated their group will be meeting on December 1at 7:00 pm. at

McCaffrey’s on the second floor. She stated this will be an informational meeting,
and they will have a community organizer from the Clean Air Council and
representatives from the League of Women Voters and other organizations.

Ms. Baxter stated there is a lot of information they do not have, and at the meeting
they will break down the tasks theyv need to do and pull from resources in the
community. Ms. Baxter stated she feels scmeone is being “paid oft,” since she
questions why anyone would want this here. She stated they are only proposing
fifty permanent jobs, and there are many negatives including the fact thatitis
densely populated and close to a watershed. She stated she does not know who
brought them in and why they picked this area.

Mr. Tim Brian, 104 W. Ferry Road, read a portion of the editorial from the Bucks
County Courier Times dated November 3, 2015 with regard the Delaware River and
how this relates to standing and the impact.

Mr. Smith stated it is important to get on top of this issue as soon as possible since
these projects sometimes have a habit of “sneaking up on you;” and itis important
to do something proactively in the beginning. He noted the Scudders Falls Bridge
project which he feels had a predetermined outcome.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 5 of 29

Ms. Tyler stated this a far more serious issue than the one that brought her to
become involved in the Township which was when a cell tower was proposed in
their neighborhood. She stated a group of neighbors got together and opposed it.
She stated the reason they were successful was because of the depth of the group.
She stated this is going to be a long process, and they should get as many people
involved as they can; and the Township will partner with them in this endeavor.

Ms. Daphne Mroz, 204 Arborlea Avenue, asked how effective a petition would be;
and Ms. Tyler stated it is a good start and a way to show that it is more than three to
four people involved. She suggested they wait until the December 1 meeting to see
how many people they have on board. She stated they could then take this petition
to other governing bodies asking for their support.

Ms. Christine Toy-Dragoni, 3 Elm Avenue, stated the Pennsylvania Department of
Water has also come out against Elcon coming here; so that organization is aware of
the potential damage to the drinking water and understands how far these facilities
are supposed to be from sources of drinking of water. She stated in this case it does
not meet what they consider to be the standards.

Mr. Smith stated they need to explain that this is not just an Arborlea problem, and it
needs to be explained that this effects everyone in Lower Makefield. He stated he
feels once the case is made that this is important to everyone in Lower Makefield, he
feels everyone will be on board to assist them.

Mr. Benedetto asked if the Township attended the hearings for Phase [, and he asked
if they intend to attend the Phase Il meetings. Mr. Eisold stated they were not aware
of this initially; but when it came to their attention, they spoke to Mr. Fedorchak
about it and they were able to submit the review by the date required. He stated
they will be involved with the other meetings that come up.

Ms. Lisa Tordo, Arborlea Avenue, stated this is bigger than Arborlea and Lower
Makefield. She stated this project will effect a thirty mile radius because the way
they want to process it, it will effect the drinking water for 8 million people over
three States including Pennsylvania, New Jersey, and Delaware. She stated they
need to engage those States as well. She stated the water vapors will effect the air
quality. She stated the particles can go from one quarter of a mile into the Delaware
up to thirty miles.

Mr. Smith asked why they want to have the plant here; and, Ms. Tordo stated she did
not know. Ms. Tordo stated she did read that they plan on getting their materials
from Massachusetts down through North Carolina. She reviewed the chemicals they
are planning to process.



November 18, 2015 Beard of Supervisors - page 6 of 29

o~ ,
el AC‘..: £

Mr. Benedetto si :
indicating that they are aware of Elcon and will be revi
Application whe itis suorm.,ed to the Pennsylvani
be submitted in the spring of 2016.

%
?
ne

xfﬁ

Mr. Ed Gavin, 904 Sensor Road, asked if there is any follow up cn the questions he
had brought up previously about the parking at the Bible Fellowship Church.

Mr. Elsold stated he looked at the Plan submitied as well as the Township engineer’s
review letter where there was a comment regarding the requirement that parking
must be separated from the building by a minimum distance of 20". Mr. Eisold
stated there are about six or seven spaces that are closer than that distance. He
stated the engineer’s comment was that the Plans must be revised for compliance or
a Waiver would be required. He stated the Planning Commission would weigh in on
this and the Board would have to decide if they ﬂcwut e Church’s reasoning why
this would be acceptable.

ed Mr.

t""fyp 43(-4 CANCEes ¢ r*,'mnd R mors

2L £

T <
Pi,'f. . bzl

building with 1“<zcrard to fire

building if the

ﬁ oI Hv._. é"s

DuULGing i ke 'y MT“ Ei a i 088
is an access out issue, but is more an accessibility issue for fire nchtn ng t
building. Mr. Eisold stated he does not have the Plan with him, and he is not sure
that the doors are really in front nf those spaces. Mr. Gavin stated the main doors
are on that side. Mr. Benedetto stated most people on Sunday go in and out of the
buiiding on the side where the modulars are. Mr. Eisold stated the addition is what
is causing the problem, and that is in the back. Mr. Benedetto stated the drawings
are available at the Church. Mr. Gavin stated his question was what doors would
people egress if there were a fire; and if you would e egress out a door where there is
parking ten feet away with possibly 350 people exiting, he feels thiswould be a
safety hazard. Mr. Benedetto stated there are various fire exists.

Mr. Gavin asked for an update on the Scammell House, and Mr. Fedorchak stated he
has received no further information about it. Mr. Fedorchak agreed to reach out to
them and perhaps have something on the next Agenda.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. Benedetto moved, Mr. Smith seconded and it was unanimously carried to
approve the Minutes of November 4, 2015 as written.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 7 of 29

APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 2 AND NOVEMBER 16, 2015 WARRANT LISTS AND
OCTOBER, 2015 PAYROLL

Mr. Dobson moved, Mr. Benedetto seconded and it was unanimously carried to
approve the November 2 and November 16, 2015 Warrant Lists and October, 2015
Payroll as attached to the Minutes.

DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF SEWER AGREEMENTS WITH YARDLEY BOROUGH

Mr. Fedorchak introduced Alex Dyke from Gilmore who is the engineer for the
Yardley Borough Sewer Authority and has been working on these Agreements for a
number of years. Mr. Fedorchak stated he has made himself available tonight to the
Board of Supervisors if they have any questions of him.

Mr. Koopman stated on November 4, Mr. Garton summarized the three Agreements
including the Sewer Transportation Agreement, an Inter-Municipal Agreement, and
a Release Agreement.

Mr. Koopman stated the Transportation Agreement updates the Agreement between
Lower Makefield and Yardley Borough; adding there are Agreements in place now
that go back to 1977 which were amended in the early 1990s. He stated they are
outdated at this time primarily because there are additional flows now and
additional capacity needed within the sewer lines. He stated as Lower Makefield
has grown there is the need for additional capacity in the sewer lines and the joint
facilities that accept flows in Yardley from Lower Makefield. He stated some of the
lines need to be upgraded and need to have an increased capacity because of
increased tlows from both Municipalities. He stated this Agreement also updates
the relationship between the Parties and clarifies who is responsible for which joint
use facilities, provides provisions if one of the Municipalities is not in compliance,
has provisions for moratoriums, has provisions for indemnifying each other for
penalties, etc.

He stated the Agreement has been in the process of negotiation for many years, and
itis hoped that this Agreement will work for some time in the future.

Mr. Koopman stated in addition to the Sewer Transportation Agreement there is an
Inter-Municipal Agreement and it takes some of the Yardley facilities and
approximately fourteen Yardley customers and transfers them to Lower Makefield.
He stated the reason for this is for metering purposes. He stated once this is done,
the flows between Lower Makefield and Yardley will all be metered so they can
allocate costs based on actual metering.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors — page 8 of 29

Mr. Kcopman sia t. He stated for a number of
vears there have Lsea:n issue ‘Macn Yart "ﬂy and Luw er Makefield regarding “who
owed who what” He Smiﬂd ﬂ e Parties looked into these issuas in some detail and
determined that it was not worth litigating the issues, and the Release calis for
Yardley to release Lower Makefield and Lower Makefield r 3ltaSLS ardley from
various claims that have been asserted cver the years.

[%5]

Mr. Koopman stated the Transportation Agreement does provide for significant
improvements for joint use facilities within Yardley Borough. He stated he
understands that there are two by-pass facilities that nesd to be constructed as well
as a replacement facility. He stated the cost of those {s approaching $3 million and
the Agreement provides for a sharing of the costs based on the capacity that both
the Parties have. He stated Lower Makefield has the larger share of the capacity.

Mr, Dyko stated Mr. Koopman | DVer well, and he added he would

Mr. Benedetto asked if the metering will change the percentage that Lower
Makefield pays to Yardley Borough. Mr. Dyke stated the percentages that are
described in the Agreementare e based on the exc hange having taken place as
described in the other Agreement. Mr. Benedetto asked the current percentage,
and Mr. Dyke stated the share is 85% Lower Makefield/15% Yardiey. Mr. Benedetto
asked if the percentage will change with the additional 13 to 14 customers, and

Mr, Dyke stated the percentage takes those additional custorers into account.

Mr. Benedetto asked Mr. Dyke to discuss the Connection Management Policy; and
Mr. Dyke stated as they identified the issue with capacity which was done mutually
by both Parties, they discovered the limitation currently on capacity. He stated in
light of that they put into place a Connection Management Policy which essentially
stopped connections until the capacity issues could be addressed. He stated that is
in place now, and the amendments to that Policy follow the model of the DEP which
provides for a corrective action plan to address this. He stated once the correction
action plan is carried out vou then allow a managed approach to making
connections as they make the improvements they are proposing. He stated there
are developments now that are on a “waiting list,” and they will be the first to be
allowed to connect under the managed approach. He stated as they hit milestones
in the process of completing improvements, additional connections will be allowed.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 9 of 29

Mr. Benedetto stated the project timeline talks about 2016/2017 and a cost which
will be in the amount of approximately $3 million with Lower Makefield’s share to
be approximately $2.5 million. Mr. Benedetto noted Lower Makefield’s share of the
professional services which is approximately $275,000, and he asked if this for
Lower Makefield’s sewer engineer. Mr. Dyke stated the understanding is that since
the improvements in the Agreement are part of the Yardley system located in
Yardley Borough, Yardley will be taking the lead and will be designing, managing,
and Permitting the project. Mr. Benedetto stated this amount will not include Lower
Makefield’s Township engineer being involved, and Mr. Dyke stated the figures in
the Agreement are strictly based on the implementation and execution of the project
and does not contemplate consulting which may be desired on Lower Makefield's
part. Mr. Dyke stated it does not call for any specific responsibility on the part of
Lower Makefield to provide engineering services.

Mr. Benedetto stated they discussed sewer capital projects during the Budget
Workshop. Mr. Fedorchak stated based on what Mr. Dyke has presented this
evening, they will have to “tweak” the numbers and they may be able to puta
smaller number in for 2016 of approximately $250,000 as opposed to the $500,000
he had proposed. Mr. Fedorchak stated what he had presented to the Board were
costs spread over 2017 and 2018. He stated he feels he will be recommending to
the Board a reduction in the figure in 2016, an increase in the number in 2017, and
possibly have a small number for 2018 as well.

Mr. Benedetto stated they have received an e-mail from Moryisville about 2014
capital costs, and they are getting a bill now for work that was completed eighteen
months ago.

Mr. Dyke noted what has been presented for Yardley is conceptual at this point since
the design has not been done, and the numbers will be updated and communicated
to the Township as they go along. He stated the time line is conceptual as well.

Mr. Dobson stated since Lower Makefield is paying the majority of the costs, they
should be able to see what the design is. Ms. Tyler stated she is concerned about
this as well. Mr. Koopman stated there is a provision for this in the Agreement.
He stated traditionally what has happened is the Municipality where the joint use
facility is located takes the lead in doing the improvements. He stated there are
estimates of cost in the Agreement, and there is a provision where not only does
Lower Makefield have oversight, but there is also a provision that if there are any
costs that are proposed in excess of the estimates, they must be approved by both
Parties. Mr. Dyke stated this applies to this project as well as to future projects.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 10 of 29

P

Mr. Smith stated both Parties seem to have been able to put the dispute behind
them and are Hm'mngal'zeaa. fie thanked the Township solicitor and Yardley

Borough as weil.

Ms. Tyler stated knowing what they have ahead with respect to Morrisvilie, she
asked if there is anything they ahould be providing in this Agreement that may help
them going forward with the Morrisville issue. Mr, Koopman stated Yardley
Borough is in the same situation that Lower Makefield is with respect to Morrisville.
He stated he does not feel there is anything they should be putting in this Agreement
that will mitigate the difficulty that is coming with Morrisville. He stated they are
actually working together with Yardley to see how th s}f are going to sclve that
problem. Mr, Dyke stated this Agreement extends and im 3 roves the reiationship
that already exists between Yardley and Lowe

-1
ing this - the

hip oper

Mr. Zachary Rubin, 1661 Covi
ownship or the Scwcrm tho

 Cary ot o -} -?-,—‘

nter-Municipal Agreement, t, and the

eting at this time. Mr. Fox joined the meeting at this time.

Mr. Koopman left the mee

DISCUSSION OF 25/30 YEAR TOWNSHIP ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

Mr. Eisold stated they had prepared this Plan initialiy as a twenty-five year Plan, and
he also included a thirty-year Plan which was based on the fact that many of the
higher volume roads were being repaved within the first six to seven years of the
Plan; and by spreading it out to thirty vears it would spread it out to more of the
development roads. Mr. Eisold stated he sent this information to Mr. Fedorchak and
has hard copies available this evening. Mr. Eisold stated he understands that this
has been part of the Budget discussion.

Mr. Benedettc asked about increases to the Township for Hiquid fueis, and he asked
if this was based on the gasoiine tax. Mr. Eisold stated this relates to the gasoline
tax, and it does filter down over time to the Municipalities through liquid fuels.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 11 of 29

Mr. Benedetto stated in 2015 the Township spent approximately $1 million, and for
2015 there was an estimate of $800,000 in the Road Improvements Plan. Mr. Eisold
stated he is not sure where the $1 million came from since the road project that was
done including all the roads except for Township Line was pretty much in line with
their projections. He stated Township Line Road may have been slightly over what
they had originally estimated. Mr. Eisold stated while $800,000 is shown, he feels it
was probably closer to $900,000. He stated the payment was approximately
$610,000 for the 2015 paving project, and he believes the Township’s share of the
Township Line Road project was approximately $250,000.

Mr. Benedetto stated they have always talked about a number of $750,000 a year to
be on target. Mr. Benedetto stated Mr. Eisold had indicated that an earlier list was
not as comprehensive so that now they are looking at a number of $1,263,267 as an
average cost for a twenty-five year program. Mr. Eisold stated the first time they did
the list they used information from the previous Township engineer, but this time
they took a more comprehensive approach to make sure that every road was
included, and that no road was duplicated.

Mr. Smith asked if they have factored inflation into the numbers, and Mr. Eisold
stated they do have an inflationary number in the report itself, but the base number
they are looking at is present value.

Mr. Benedetto asked that this be put on the Township Website for the residents to
look at. He asked the difference between an arterial road and a collector road; and
Mr. Eisold stated the arterial roads are the highest volume roads, and the collector
roads are the second highest volume roads. Mr. Benedetto asked about reasons why
certain roads fall at certain spots on the list, and Mr. Eisold stated it was a condition
survey more than the age of the road. He stated some roads under certain
conditions can last fifty years and others after fifteen to twenty are in poor
condition. He stated their list was based on condition of the roads from actually
driving, evaluating, and rating them compared to other roads. Mr. Benedetto
commended Mr. Eisold for a job well done.

Ms. Tyler stated this is a working document which will continue to be updated.

She stated each year they will continue to survey the roads, and it will continue to
be updated. She stated if a resident has a road condition concern, they should
contact the Township Manager. She stated there are some jobs that they can do
in-house, but the large, development paving is not something that the Township
staff can do. She stated they do have a great turn-around on pot holes. Ms, Tyler
stated a lot of the Township was built close in time, and now the roads are maturing
at the same time.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 12 of 29

Mr. Mike BT
softball fi
been pa fe ¥ ,
to have a closer seam. He stated many times t’w ; can correct the vmr@ s Wlth an
asphalt Se:nc so water cannot getinto the ”%"Ls He stated they do work with the
contractor to try to minimize those and keep the seams cut of me center of the
travel lanes and either in the shoulder or the center of the road where there is less
traffic on them. Mr. Eisold stated they can do joint sealing to extend the life of the
roads, and the Township has done a fair amount of that in the past. Mr. Brody asked
where they would report cracks, and Ms. Tyler stated they should e-mail the
Township Mana ger who will g@‘!' Public Weorks out there. Ms, Tyler stated if they are
PennDOT roads, they can pass the information along te PennbOT.

Mr. Benedetto asked Mr,
entitlement. Mr. Benedetto stated
for equipment and other thi
have expenseac _
approximately $162.000 outside labor that are Townsh ‘g expenses for contractors
that are employed for snow removal and $75,000 for sait. He stated that number
has varied over the years, and for 2015 they expect to have approximately
$133,000; and in 2014 they spent $166,000 on salt. Mr. Fedorchak stated for 2016
they are taking approximately $566,000 out of Liguid Fuels for road resurfacing and
this will be matched up with another $140,000 from Capital Reserve to get to the
$700,000 figure.

"‘,:he use _F '!:he Liquid Fuels

1h is th ’Ooya}mw an be used

e LA“lhi(

Mr. Joe Menard, 917 Putnam Drive, Chair of the Citizens Budget Committee stated
on the Website they should highlight the roads in the Township that are not the
Township’s responsibility. Mr. Eisold stui'ef'{ he does have a map that shows all the
State roads. He stated there is a map that was attached to his report which he can
provide.

Ms. Tvler stated the Board has been engaged in Budget Workshops, and she
acknowledged joe Menard, Adrian Costello, Bill Clark, and Mark Goodman from the
Cm?ens Budget Commission who put a ot of hours in. She stated their advice is

I A i B X
e, and they appreciate time and efforts this year.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 13 of 29

Mr. Menard stated they have been working with the engineering companies for
some time to get to where Mr. Eisold is now with the plan for the roads. He stated
every year there is an evaluation done of the roads which results in prioritizing of
the roads. He stated this Plan is a guide and not an absolute.

2015 ROADWAY PAVING PROJECT UPDATE

Mr. Eisold stated there were some issues last year with this contractor, but this year
he was able to supply the resources to make sure that he completed the project on
time. He stated they are putting together a punch list which has some minor issues
on it, and they are in the process of addressing those issues. He stated the
contractor put their full payment request in which Mr. Eisold evaluated, and he
recommended that it be paid in the amount of $580,000; and they are retaining
approximately 5% per the Contract to withhold until the close out documents are
completed and the maintenance bond posted, etc. He stated they were timely this
year, and the issues they had last year were alleviated this year.

Ms. Tyler asked about the bandicap ramps, and Mr. Eisold stated they have applied a
sealant on them this year which was recommended by a number of people to make
the surface more durable especially during the first few years which is typically
whien they see issues. Mr. Eisold stated they will continue to monitor this, and they
have the Maintenance Bond from the contractor for a year if something should
happen. Mr. Eisold stated the contractor also replaced some of the other handicap
ramps without charge.

2016 GOLF BUDGET

Mr. Mike Attara was present, and stated he had a chance to meet with the members
of the Citizens Budget Commission to review the draft Budget that was originally
provided; and that has been updated and the Board of Supervisors was presented
with that this evening. Mr. Attara stated two weeks ago they discussed with the
Board the addition of the tent and the courtyard area to provide additional revenue
to the Golf Course. Mr. Attara stated they have been able to manage the expenses
generally at or under Budget.

Mr. Benedetto stated he feels the projected revenue for 2016 seems optimistic.

Mr. Attara stated the Budget they are presenting this evening is $1,368,000.

Mr. Benedetto asked where they are projecting 2015 to finish with regard to greens
fees, and Mr. Attara stated it is $1,285,000. He stated their budgeting process is that
they take a six-year average, and $1.368 million is a six-year average. He stated
2015 had a slow start due to the weather., Mr. Benedetto asked if there is a plan for



age 14 0of 29

pervisors

)
L [y
o R ,
s o ] h u s [E R B
i B i & o L S a
oo e o = m B e o
5 a8 oo D . . = 0
2 o el @ = = By 20 ey [ =
=0 Ve w2 8 & T S & % ow
0o B = 8w = = 0 R
& o 2w B o @ = 8 G oo =
) 2 Q) o fo)
o 98 o S THEmBYa.
O o] ey ] 153 1..» . s R B3N
a o ® e P = o W .= 76
&8 , SN o 8 3
285 = £ o & T
o B o = @ i 800 ¢ Q9. a =
S m [Re] m oo o s Yoo mu el ,.,n»\ ..,T,.
3 s im S g e
o L a - o S X o < - O
n ) @ Lo oS s S St
o L Q@ oo =g e = O A8 =
= £ ¢ i @ 5 S v oo 5
50 e ] v B ie) ( -
© < SR R oo
iped L (38 (T ¥ &
e ¢ |y 2 S g A
= oo o & e : -
= X f it m .unu o= .M,.
Y = O o
b= = (4] s o
5} M L o - o
- [ a,\uu op . ==
o = B = -
[1v1 — = = ) .qu
¢ = 2 > x5
po @ . o =
T o s @ b i
o) o e gy %) %
= = T o )
< & a i = i)
[ © gy e e
[0 ﬂi ¢y ot o
= [ s ) g T
P =

& 2 @ = 8o w2 =
5o = R a R = t T
vy @3 © S e g @ 3 &3
¥t g =B e o ¢
£ @ g & e o= g .

7 L o i ] a i
292 @ = w 3 3
£ B g ) & ¥
a2 o w W3 ) &

o © I oo e = s
Do O < zH © s
B a2 4 - L ay { i
e D e e W] - B
o = ol B T o =%

B o RO
e U 7 I~ :
S TS 28T &

e 7T ¢+ ORI PETA 80 N
et i .%o s R & @ /
4o BYE o @ g o
ki @) - ks R S )
@ 5 T 7R R R =
R i o W LI G &

@y S A S m S e 9 o

n 3 B 1 T
@o® S LB 2w L
L R A LD B @9 e e o
= = 0 - B R L e s
&Moo g b e (g = £3 t
5 & 8o o w2
o Q Z e P @ &
< & D8 g o= AT ol ey S = 0
&, = - F . > . { [
e L B S o ey L BoS
[ I S ) o™ P e 7 ]
=, S T © oW W =ow
e Wy Ry D N v T M3 . 451 o =)

= Lo G i e Readeg 2t gt
= E5 238 8EAT
_\ b el o I o T




November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors ~ page 15 of 29

can get this increased. Mr. Fedorchak stated they have demonstrated particularly
over the last three to four years that there is no impact on the wells in the
surrounding neighborhood.

Mr. Benedetto noted the expenditure page, and asked {or an explanation as to the
decrease in what was projected for the debt principal payments, and Mr. Fedorchak
stated this is a result of the refinancings.

Mr, Benedetto asked Mr, Attara if he would characterize this year as an average year
in terms of rounds, and Mr. Attara stated there were eighty days that they were
closed this year including July 4h which is a lucrative weekend. Mr, Attara stated
overall they had a 1ot of nice weather in season so they were able to pick up some of
the loss from early in the year.

Mr. Smith asked if they are going to have a Banquet Manager; and Mr. Attara stated
potentially they will, and they are in the process now of starting to look into that.

Ms. Tyler stated Makefield Highlands is not only a great venue to golf, but there is
also a lot more there; and the tent facility is beautiful. She stated if any Township
residents are looking to have an affair, they should look at Makefield Highlands.

& ello met with Mr. Attara and Mr. Doria and there
,ug to the Bzzdhﬂ ﬂn b\,uhlzs 1901@1}2 at ths. have Ulan%d

“i T, M enar d,

j~~ *,fwmt\ . H ¢ ! r. F ,
change to ﬂh Budget ! ormat. He noted that recer ntly there have been admtional
monies spent on the food services, and they are going to be tracking the net profit.

Mr. Zachary Rubin stated 1999 was when they horrowed $16 miilion to build the
Course; however, Mr. Fedorchak stated he feels it was in the early 2000s.

Mr. Rubin asked how much of the principai is ourqtandl‘ng as of today, not counting
the borrowing for the Dalgewicz settlement. Mr. Fedorchak s ateu he can provide
this to Mr. Rubin, but he estimates that it is $12 million w 513 million.

DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF 2016 PRELIMINARY BUDGET

2016 Sewer Rate Increase

Mr. Fedorchak stated they had two lengthy Public Hearings on the Budget; and at
the conclusion of Monday night's meet ng, he Board discussed the possibility of
making amendments to the 2016 Preliminary Budget that was introduced

3

dappr ('“{in"l%u,! v one month

1




Mr. Dobson stated they have been able to qelf fm a Iat of the 59wer repairs over
‘the last few years, but now the iowush;p ne
again because of U}r ex n
‘me}..

i LA

ATICHE O
DG T LWES S FAS

v which
ch was

: report from the Mm“’r'm iiig engineer vesterday which
sp Gfﬁw and she s £l Bo i

Mr. Fedorchak stated last week the Lower Makefield Sewer engineer and the
Yardley Borough Sewer engineer attended a special meeting in Morrisville held for
the enemeerq Mr. Fe*doxchak S ated at thaumelmﬂﬂw Monm He engmeel

because he wasy

Township’s share be



i_x«

November 18, 2015 oard of Supervisors

Mr, Fedorchak stated four to five years ago the Township made a decision to set
aside $500,000 and took it out of Operating and put it into Capital; and because they
were proactive, they have been able to pay as they go with some major capital
improvements. Mr. Fedorchak stated now they are looking at the Five Year Plan’
and what they wili be required te be paying for in 2016 could be as much as

$1.2 million, for 2017 $1.7 million, and 2018 $1.5 million. He stated the $500,000
they have been setting aside will therefore not be sufficient. Mr. Fedorchak stated
this is why they need to have a discussion about starting to gﬁet more money into the
Capital Budge, and he feels a 10% increase will be approximately $500,000.

Mr. Smith asked what this will mean to the average homeowner. Mr. Fedorchak
stated assuming they have to participate in the cost shari ing of a brand new sewage
reatment plant at the cost of at least $125 million, he feels the rates will double
over the course of a number of years.

Mr. Dobson stated Lower Makefield is responsible for 43% of that cost. He stated
because he feels the Township is paying a large share of this, he would like to
consider the formation of a Joint Authority with Morrisville so that the Township
has “a seat at the table.” My, Fedorchak stated he feeis th 1ey need to bring

Mr, Koopman into this, and he x-vwﬁ -z-'b"fm N;y recomme it a Ioml Am“’x xlf"hc
created so that the T

only way for Lower Makm dci h d of this. wim‘t has happened for
the last three years is that in Novem! o em how fzuc}i they owe
for a project Morrisville ' concerned
that thmy are going to be Hect 5.} veen started
that Lower Makefield did not : mi Im I~3‘xarciiev
Borough should be e:smugmui 2el the same way Lowe
Makefield does.

1\':

Mr. Smith stated while he recognizes what Mr. Doebson is saying, itis Mfuuw*ﬁ s
Plant, and they can tell Lower Makefield no; and then the Township is left wuh
option of staying with Morrisvi 1 > or they would have to build their own plant

Mr. Fedorchak stated they coi 3 ‘”»dlrr:s:u ows te Bucks C oupt} \*-’ater&
Sewer. He stated he does ne in Lower Makefield wants to build their
own plant.

7

apital Fund, is runninga
{approximately

uding Morrisville, they
a 15% increase in

Mr. Benedetto stated the Sewer Fund, independent of the
deficit; and at the end of 2016 itis budgeted to have a defi
$600,000 so beyond any of the costs they are d}su}ssqu
still need an increase. Mr, Benadetto stated the {ast increase was
2011




upervisors -

ately $130

will still have to go inte the surplus funds in th

Mr, Menard stat

1000.

his how

amount of approximately

=]

Ve

cand t

IS

surph

v

th

11

S5
&

e a he

i
(%

they b

cause

ay

b

w5Ing !

04U

¥

mp

udgeted $700,000 for this purpose, and

Li

ita

0]

3

b

v have b

he

Mr. Fedorchak stated currently

mer

3

hould

£

@&

9,000 1f ¢

ey

B

Cat

2

v will ar

%

=

and th

aQ
Do A3

nd expens

o=
-t
3+

1

Fio e ]

e

-

——

!

Wi



November 18, 2015 Bo

4%

Mr. Fedorchak stated they do not have additional monies in the current Capital
Funds to spend for road resurfacing; so if it is the Board’s intention to increase the
$700,000, the only place that could come from would be the General Fund balance
which for year end 2016 would be about $1.6 million which is well ahove Safe

Harbor. He stated for 2015 they are projecting close to $2.2 million.

Mr. Benedetto stated he feels they did a good job with the roads this yvear; butif they
want to catch up, he does not feel they can have $700,000, and he would like to see
it be at the same level they were atin 2015, He feels they should take the $300,000
from the General Fund Balance since they would stiil be within Safe Harbor.

Mr. Fedorchak stated Safe Harbor is between 5% to 8%, and they would be at
approximately 12% if they take the $300,000 additional from the General Fund
Balance. He stated he will double check the numbers. Ms. Tyler stated iooking at
the past history, they have ground to make up; and she feels they need to have a
slow, methodical climb. Mr. Beniedetto stated there will be an increase in the Liquid
Fuels. He stated he feels road 1‘@51*43@,&% s one of the most important services they
provide, and he would like to see nount budgeted for this go up.

o]

ast few years, and

Mr. Smith asked if ¢ irpdus bas ml incres Lsod overt
fore f’mhmm ww:

Mr. Fedorchak agreed. Mr. |
$1,878,0000, in 2014 it was $2

r

for the end of 2015, He state ‘
te 1 620,000 be akin NONEY ;"«.~.d*:': «;nd i Lnuv fake

ther qS}QU,OGU
g'txtite3 he does notw.
residents. He suggeste
would be $1 million whic
Year Plan; but he feels itis a fai
putting the money where it be ::ﬁgs Mr. Fec

iy J.L,,J;.O 000. My, Sinith

w s p wovided o the
hey did in 2015 which

sed in the Twenty-Five

| see that they are
ed the budgeted amount last
s actuaily spent $1 million.
= and like they did this

5‘, o dowr
T3

W o
SR is g

[

lo
year was approximately $850,000. Mr. Smith

Ms. Tvler stated she feels they should be mors

vear put more money into it as additional moneyv is:

Mr. Fedorchal stated 5 1 and if h:ﬂ., Hﬁ by
the end 0f 2015 UWCV are ah = falt they would be

they have to make a ‘m

April and May so there
by then, and they will |

| in the Twenty-
is : over f‘E* e number.

Is their

o

Mr. Benadetio stated he understans
Five/Thirty Year Plan are ge neral
Mr. Eiscld stated for this vear not
numbers were accurate, Ha

E;’
CJ
o

factors including €8

fiu.



November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 20 of 29

N 3 neo
Hal 1iC K

Mr. Smith moved, Mr. Benedetto seconded and it was unanimously carried to
increase the Hydrant Tax by .04 mills.

1%

2y gt 14
fHactl iy WY iS

i at 1) )
so inat thos




November 18, 2015 Board of Supervisors - page 21 of 29

would not have a discount; and it would be a flat rate. He stated all the other
property taxes would still have a discount. He stated the impact would be
significant for the Leaf/Recycling Fee which is currently $50; and once itis
discounted, they lose approximately $50,000 so they would gain that,

Mr. Benedetto asked when the new lights wers installed and were any savings
realized. Mr. Fedorchak stated those were the traffic signal lights, and they did not
go to LED lighting for me street lights. He stated there were savings of
approximately $Z 5,000 to $30,000 a year for the traffic lights that were installed a
few years ago. Mr. Fedorchak stated with regard to the street lights there are
approximately 800 property owners that are assessed on a linear foot basis.

Mr. Zachary Rubin statec } tm{‘i:m}y the Township had very few street lights; but as
the Township was built out more and more developments, for safety sake, started
putting in more street »zgfhlq Hes {@a as those streets get dedicated to the
Township, there are more street i g} that are the responsibility of the Township.
He Qt‘at‘ed "'urr'mt'h" Y’f%‘xen a !‘ J0es out, um Township has to go to Northampton
..I< U.L \; ’hnuld C(‘)"1‘3ié":if?*'1" Gem:ing a
increase.

; ld i‘he

b ucket tr uck bec
He stated people
former head of Public
there would be
should look into
Northampton to com

aAuse i,ﬂ er

Mr. Siy ith} oved, Mr. Benedstic ad to
remave the Strest L = discount
avaﬂ.able.

2016 Community Pool Non-Resident Fe

Ms. Tyler stated she dix“f:f,xssed this with Ms. Liney who indicated that the Park & Rec
Board had a brief disc 3 sue, and they did not recommend that the Fee
beincreased at this

1me

= Py ‘ul a*" d increas
Wis hi

Mr. Smith stated Ms. Tyler re-b
s0 by making it more of a regional poai zmh a’l
they did was offer Associate Memberships £

stated the philk vat thi
the Township reside
costs of o um-mna
Townshinp to belong

& =

: .L ‘*—LI {HL
miof the increased

e outside of the
i1 iE’:SIdEH'{S‘




i two very sugce

felt they should not increase

525 for a no
d(}e mi IEtiLh’; is
unreasonab il 2
“bargain.” |
wait unftil 2017 an
why r’h'" 7

ool mmmsmcmp m: n(_umi;S‘tt‘ian, it
ore in 1”1 s with w ne !

zmﬂts and
totof tlm@
,,hev

tw do. He state i 101" mp hl"“L time thb ar, 11191 are u ansferring § PUQ,JUO toa Pooi

Capital Improvement Fund, and this i is the first time since the Bﬂfzd‘f were paid off
that they had a Capital Improvement F Lmd dedicated fc (‘ P ool He“ s{atpd Lhcy
need to make some an vements to make ita nics

shiould
3

and will know il




November 18, 2045

yth Revenues and
, and he will put
¢ m e next week, He will
iminary Budget.

Mr, Fadorchak *»‘ub—*dn. yerevising ¢

Expenses based on ecent repar
thosze numbers into the %mt_udf-d Bu e
also include the Motions made this eve

mmmww carried to
Judget which should be
XVE};S‘.L&,,

Mr., Benedetto moved, Mr, Smith secondsd and 11
,?-.u,ﬂfu'a*iz:g ti e a §vs~1”tm:~uwmm i‘ue Amended T PJ

hip Buiidi

O & z‘esid 1LY 1g if they considered using
, and it was agreed ¢ m‘c ulev would ask the

Mr. Smith s

the fire tf‘uu < to change the ligh
Fire Company ahout this.

OPEN SPACE DISCUSSION

rroximately one
- to nur_hase’ a

car tam n
and by doi

Mr. Fedorchak s 1 7, Mr. Jennings advised
he and Ms, Tyler that he was still very interested in constructing a second house on
. Mr. Fedorchak stated for a number of yea Jennings has had a
or two lots with the - the lot where he
Mr. Fe¢ chal state ¢ he had told Mr. Jennings
he Town sim 3.78 acres, which was
C How highly unlikely for him

because he is
1se he has a
m“;uw would
+ fie had to maks to

rantes that once the

his proper
Subdivision in the system f
would locate the second home
over a month ago was that if he were o seb
what they had agreed upon, once t_ atwa
o be able to subdi the .“;é ‘
in the RRP Zone wh
substantial amount of resourc
S( ucﬂ, 1 sstrict him. Mi Fedo
re Was no way
A, ifhe ‘wczﬂ”i el
Ms ”[”

n

the iD\V wshin could gu




.

T et R Sy A ¥
November 18, 2015

.»,2.4

Mr FPdOF ‘hak stai'efi he LUM M1 Jennings the same things he hcz@ said to hsm
prewousiy,bul,}n, was st 10pe that he could get in the econd house.
. s .

still holding outt
: calles IM": lennings to w in dn ated ov

rWa ht up the jen:
was anythmg pendmg before ﬂ Zonmg7 Heaz

there was not. Mr. Benedetto stated one of th
%ch‘d if they could » Mr. Jennings, ¢

on; and



Mr. Benedetto st
contingent on her get gy Board approve
Mr, Jennings seems i qu ho W anr H e T:;\: 1ship to go to the Zoning Hearing Board
on his behalf and ge 15,_;pru\*a{ for a Variance for a second house. Mr. Benedetto
asked if the Townsi up( an do that, and asked if the ~5‘ﬂ!.c could be contingent on the
approval by the Zoning Hearing Board of gz*dm mga Variance to build the second
house. Mr, Fedorchak stated while Mr, gsise Afz’*fed to explore all his
opportunities, Wiﬂm you see the size of the tract takir 1;3 ay the 3.78 acres to be
sold to the Township, this would leave him with two parcels that are not three acres
or more ,.mwellaﬂm, fact that it is an RRP Zone whhﬁ.n is even more restrictive.
hat there are protected natural resource assets that

For her Variances; and

th
1
nd

A

He stated adding in the fact th
would make it even more difficult fo get Variances.

hnically be cl‘;anging“" = Township purchased
Id not be develop at portion, and hg
wiild on the lot. Mr, lvdm chak stated

cince itis th QT"“’K }Ei, a pr(\}_

Mr. Benedetto asked what would te
the 3.78 acres since the Township wou
ask;a why Mr, Jennings could not still

r. Jennings could not use the ” 783z
wmd h@ kould not use r'w

ag his s 4

; mts, and it wouid still

he felt
with the iﬂ opel

78 acres.
’rhe‘— past that ¢
that would allo : sacond h
He stated he did advise Ml Ee mmgs NM
$175,000 to $200,000 fora 75

:ezun" it Lu Lh e

L he Hwﬁ
L, always go d

wave to sell

Mr. Smith stated if Mr. Jennings does not want to wll h« does not
regardless of whe : : 1 thi ¢ they need ali
this ground for a walk | M., £ --Hd tzmi amount was what
Mr. Jennings had agree fiv ago Mr. F@aordmk xhl@d & f8 acres was
what they agreed to; and Mr I nnin; : N
the idea of @ second ‘muw, H@ stal edz
and Mr, }Lnnmm 1%
B_:ald Mr. S
Ir t

s ets wii‘h him,
riances from the Zoning Hearing
ged 30 much ground.

ion ff,r evpr‘, One

)O’l situnali

/ ‘i,ﬁ SO W Hth would




Update on Madak Tract

rd had directed him SO
ihe Madak Tract

the Tract were hov nd

Lg»lk TU rﬁ?’ j !

Mr F edm chak s"’ma thf.% Bm‘

3,

50 he will
to

’\?‘Ldll
y" owners ags f.'v" H«, stated if i
perty owner ,J, he would lik
i ll}r,mm_xmw
i34 wrr»;bu;i« g oit this to m:

v out UT the pui‘ur%
the Board’s

Boara

Lo W

CAPSTONE TERRACE

carried to approve

SUPERVISOR

Ms. Tyler stated she received a letter from the Delaware River Joint Toll Bridge
Commission at,um the Scudders F al la Bridge p‘oiect, ard hz: %Km hd" lhls be pu"
on the Towns! te, She stated they will be holdir
' Jpm.to? ,aﬂ paa




recure a certain
ramps associated with the

£ ip and indicating their vision

small tw ) hat h parking, etc.; and that is
mev \mumhkﬂ? purchase the entire lot, He stated that they would
have the f'u}“}{ & Ride mmw thel € al nd thev would maintain that
2 it 5 m~ Board more information on this, and he
nd n their plan: that the Board can
stated this would be a Fee Simple Purchase

% the :

could not put it
through

made it clear that
d cated that ifthe

on th je:'sov si im;. ’\h‘ im*
condemnation; and Mr. Fed:
this was not the s hey
Board of Su pezwqor s is notir
He stated the V»; ‘»1»:.’, g

ramps, but tha

fondt

v 10 go witl
« get it back on
1V e et "v".h:

d asked about the
ks ago he asked

; Me stated they wanted
reservation properties. He added

s back she will handle this,

Mr. Benedetto sta :
signage at the P"— gan’

Ms. Liney to handle that, ang
something similar to what i
Ms. Liney will be outforaw

My, Benedetto sta

Sub hu gion, and one o
Hasement ’U‘ bey ;;ef:e on u?

nal land ':‘zping
fw—dhml been



rs as there is one opening
{ ey Wmuld .:dqo like to
ardship Award

Mr. Benedetto stated the EAC is looking for new memb
and they may possibly have ano ,her'wv mnﬁ soon. H
=¢ about nomine

1

they pm:mb e on the Agen ma befa
chey can move ahead just with the selection of the site. M:, ’i}eie’ st Led as t
funding, she understood that this was to be a fundraising project; and she dees not
feaﬂ that Um an*lsluu ever made & repres Jnm‘.mn that this was going to

A stated h hat they

\’[x

&
¥



APPOINTMENTS

ollowing:

Mr. Dobison moved to reappoint

{zrace Godshalk - ol C Oimumm—;
Patricia Bunn Fart
Lisa Huct

Mr. Bened

Mr. Bene

POLICE DE

5 to Traffic
He stated

his

Chief Cc

H 1etto 5
1:00 p.m.

T

nithed,

R

]eff Benedétto, Sacre




-

—
S



Township of Lower Makefield

NOVEMBER 2015 WARRANT LIST AND
OCTOBER 2015 PAYROLL COSTS FOR APPROVAL
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Kristin Tyler, Chairman

Daniel McLaughiing, Vice Chairman
Jeffrey Benedetto, Secretary
Debby Dobson, Treasurer

Ronald A. Smith, Superviscr

Accounts Payable Warrant Report:

Printed Checks:

11/02/15 Warrant List $ 329,272.68

11/16/15 Warrant List $ 366,653.58

Manual Checks:

11/02/15 Warrant List $ 233.62

11/16/15 Warrant List 5 1,243.58

Total Warrant Reports $ 697,403.46
Payroll Costs:

October 2015 Payroll $ 340,712.38

October 2015 Payroll Taxes, etc. $ 146,684.37

Total Payroll Costs $ 487,396.75

[TOTAL TO BE APPROVED

$ 1,184,800.21

HOG 2RGEWO0D ROAD
YARDLEY, PA 19067-1696

TERRY FEDORCHAK
Township Manager

(267) 274-1100
FAX: (215) 493-3053
Wabsite:www. Imt ara






